
AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 – 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   
August 6, 2012 

6:00 p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 

4. Minutes of Meetings – July 16, 2012 
 

5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 

from the public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be 
taken under public comments.) 
 

6. Administrator’s Report 
 

7. New Business 

 
A. Consider Resolution #12-25 – Resolution of appreciation to Miss Chelsea 

Goessl for outstanding community service during her tenure as Miss Pleasant 
Prairie 2011. 
 

B. Consider Resolution #12-23 to initiate an amendment to the Village 
Comprehensive Plan to adopt the June 2012 amendment to the Regional 

Water Quality Management Plan and make the necessary updates to the 
chapter. 
 

C. Consider Resolution #12-24 to initiate the discontinuance of a portion of 
120th Avenue (West Frontage Road) north of STH 165 (104th Street). 

 
D. Consider an award of contract for single stream recycling services. 

 

E. Consider an award of contract for solid waste landfill services. 
 

F. Consider Ordinance #12-22 to amend Chapter 355 of the Municipal Code 
relating to well permits. 
 

G. Consider Ordinance #12-23 to amend Chapter 285 of the Municipal Code 
relating to sanitary sewer definitions. 



Village Board Agenda 
August 6, 2012 

 

2 

 

H. Consider an Agreement for Professional Environmental Engineering Services 

to support the Village in its actions relative to the BP Station illicit discharge 
and contamination located at 10477 120th Avenue. 
 

I. Consider an award of contract for the Police Department remodel project. 
 

J. Consider Ordinance #12-24 to amend Chapter 242 of the Municipal Code 
relating to RecPlex fees. 
 

K. Consider Lease Agreement for RecPlex concession services. 
 

L. Consider park permit request of Piccadilly Circus to rent Picnic Site #1 in 
Prairie Springs Park from August 27 through September, 1, 2012. 
 

8. Village Board Comments 
 

9. Adjournment 

 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

July 16, 2012 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, July 16, 2012.  

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Monica 

Yuhas, Steve Kumorkiewicz, Clyde Allen and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Michael Pollocoff, Village 

Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development 

Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director/Treasurer; Dave Mogensen, Interim Police Chief; Doug 

McElmury, Fire and Rescue Chief; Mike Spence, Village Engineer; and Jane Romanowski, Village Clerk.   

Two citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - JULY 2, 2012 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Motion to approve. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Clyde, second by Monica for approval.  Are there any additions or corrections 

 

 ALLEN MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 2, 2012 VILLAGE 

BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY YUHAS; 

MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 A. Consider a new application for a Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage license for 

Stateline Citgo, 12720 Sheridan Road. 
 

 

 

Jane Romanowski: 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

2 

 

Mr. President and Board members, as you recall on May 21
st
 the Board approved the renewal of 

the Class A fermented malt beverage license to Michael McArdle who has held the license there 

for as long as I’ve worked here and longer, so it’s been over 20 years, and he was an agent for 

Stateline Enterprises for the establishment at 12720 Sheridan Road.  Mr. McArdle was not able to 

satisfy the conditions of approval.  He had a revoked seller’s permit, he kind of fell on hard times, 

so Mr. McArdle did not pick up his license.   

 

Subsequently, Anthony Buches, agent for Graham Enterprise, Inc., the owner of the property, has 

submitted an application to continue a license there, or to start a new license basically because 

they haven’t been able to serve since the end of June 30
th
 because the license expired and they 

didn’t pick up their other one.  So I’ve worked with Patrick Graham, and they did submit this 

application.  And everything is satisfied.  The Police Chief has reviewed the police questionnaire.  

And as you can see there are some outstanding delinquencies that Mr. McArdle left that Graham 

Enterprises will have to obviously pay before a license is issued just like every other license.  All 

delinquencies must be paid. 

 

So at this time the application is in order, license fee of $250 and publishing fee which everybody 

pays, and then there’s a delinquent weights and measures invoice and a delinquent utility bill.  If 

approved this license would be issued upon payment, and it would be good through June 30
th
 of 

next year, and it would be on the same calendar year as all the other licenses.  So basically they’re 

just taking over the license and protecting their business, and Mr. McArdle is no longer in 

business there. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay, this being a public hearing I will open it up to public comment or question.  Do we have a 

signup sheet? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Mr. Graham is here if you need to ask him any questions.  He would be happy to come to the 

microphone. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

That would be part of the public hearing, correct? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Yes.  But he is aware of the memo and the delinquencies, and we’ve worked well together. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Mr. Graham, would you care to speak?  Give us your name and address for the record. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

3 

Patrick Graham: 

 

Patrick Graham, 522 East Street.  I really don’t have anything to say.  If you have any questions 

I’m happy to answer any questions you might have.  It’s just our hope that we’ll – 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I’m sorry, we need the full address. 

 

Patrick Graham: 

 

Okay, 522 West Street, Libertyville, Illinois. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Alright, thank you. 

 

Patrick Graham: 

 

We’ve owned the property for probably 30 some years now and have always leased to Mike 

McArdle.  And like Jane said he’s fallen on hard times and as a result not able to continue.  So it 

was our hope all along to take over the operation at some point but not under these circumstances. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

How many licensed bartenders do you have working at Stateline? 

 

Patrick Graham: 

 

Licensed bartenders? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Yeah. 

 

Patrick Graham: 

 

We have four that have completed the training currently, and I believe they have two in the 

process as well. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Okay, good, thank you. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

4 

Patrick Graham: 

 

We have eight other licenses.  We operate 30 retail facilities in the Chicago metropolitan area.  So 

we are very comfortable that we’ll do a nice job representing the Village.  We have measures in 

place that we have purchased a software upgrade to the registers so that it prompts ID 

verification.  We also have a third party company, bars, that comes to all of our liquor license 

facilities and checks to make sure that the customer service representatives are carding 

individuals that are under the age of 35.  So we put measures in place ourselves to make sure that 

we do a nice job of representing the Village and not selling obviously to minors.  So we think 

we’ll do a nice job representing the Village. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Just one more thing, I will need Anthony’s training certificate tomorrow when you come. 

 

Patrick Graham: 

 

Okay. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

I know you said he took the training so make sure they drop that off. 

 

Patrick Graham: 

 

Okay, sure. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Other questions for Mr. Graham?  Okay, thank you.  Anyone else wishing to speak?  Anyone else 

wishing to speak?  Anyone else wishing to speak?  If not, I’m going to close the public hearing 

and open it up to Board comment or question.  Mike? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

John, I would move approval of the license subject to the license fee, publication fee and the two 

delinquent items that the Clerk has mentioned. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?   

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

5 

 SERPE MOVED TO GRANT A CLASS “A” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 

LICENSE TO ANTHONY BUCHES, AGENT, FOR GRAHAM ENTEPRISES FOR THE 

PREMISES AT 12720 SHERIDAN ROAD, D/B/A STATELINE, SUBJECT TO THE 

CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY THE VILLAGE CLERK; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0. 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

Bob Babcock: 

 

Bob Babcock, 11336 Lakeshore Drive.  I’d like to get a little update on the repaving of Lakeshore 

Drive.  The surface they put on there is still soft.  If you are stopped and turn your wheels you 

make marks in the surface, and there’s a number of places where some of the lawn care people 

have backed in and then backed out of driveways and stuff like that so a lot of markings there.  

The area by my house, the first time I drove on it I thought I was running out of gas.  It was 

vibrating a little bit, and then I looked and I knew I had plenty of gas.  And then I realized it’s just 

rough there, and got a little further north and it all smoothed out.  And my daughter the same 

exact thing happened to her.  She started on there and all of a sudden it was going like that and 

she thought she was having a flat tire.  

 

So I’ve had a couple other people come to me with some complaints with lots of little inch or 

inch and half diameter chunks in the surface.  There are a couple places where there had been a 

chunk and it was popped off and left kind of a hole.  Now, I do see where it looks like they’re 

going to start putting the markings on the street.  And I just wonder how long it’s going to stay 

soft and I can pass it on to some of my complaining friends.  Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you.   

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

No more signups. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anyone else wishing to speak under citizens’ comments? 

 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

I think with respect, Mike, you want to talk about the micro surface? 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

6 

Mike Spence: 

 

Sure.  I just wanted to let you know that we are aware of that situation.  We haven’t accepted the 

project yet.  The contractor has been put on notice that we’re not happy particularly with that 

southern portion where Mr. Babcock lives.  He mentioned the pavement marking.  We’ve 

actually – there’s a different contractor that’s doing the pavement marking, and they actually are 

stopping I think it’s at about 110
th
 Street.  We’ve told them to go no further south until we resolve 

the problem.  We think that there may have been some contamination of the stone that they 

actually dragged when they were doing the micro surfacing.  So we are looking into that. 

 

Secondly, as far as the soft pavement I’ll be talking with the contractor.  I’m not sure because of 

the weather we’ve had, 100 degree temperatures, I’m not sure if there’s a curing issue.  But I did 

notice that because I drove it today myself, and I saw where there were some marks from vehicles 

turning around.  So we have those items that we’re looking at right now. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

One question.  Mike, did the same company do 85
th
 Street, too? 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

They did. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

They put that initial application on.  It’s the same company we used – they were also low bid 

when we did Prairie Ridge. 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

They did Prairie Ridge last year, and they’re supposed to be starting striping.  In their eyes 

they’re finished with everything but, like I said, we do have issues with Lakeshore Drive now.  I 

haven’t heard anything about 85
th
 Street. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Mike, I think we should take a ride up there.  I did today and as a finished product I don’t think 

it’s the best I’ve seen, nowhere near it. 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

We can certainly do that. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

The work they did on Prairie Ridge last year was outstanding. 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

7 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

It was good. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

There’s been questions raised, as Mike said also, I received a call on 85
th
.  Mike, anything else? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider Resolution #12-22 to initiate the change of the official address of 11121 4
th

 

Avenue to 11027 4
th

 Avenue. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a resolution to initiate the change of an official 

address of a property located in Pleasant Prairie.  Resolution 12-22 states that it’s been brought to 

the Village’s attention that the address of an existing property located at 11121 4
th
 Avenue, 

identified as Lot 20 of Block 20 in the Carol Beach Estates Subdivision Unit Number 2 owned by 

Gomez and Gisela Hernandez and further identified as Tax Parcel Number 93-4-123-293-1045 is 

not addressed properly.  In other words, it’s not in the proper sequence.  Addresses that have been 

assigned out of sequence could create problems for emergency response personnel, deliveries and 

other persons trying to locate the properties. 

 

So the purpose of this resolution is to initiate the process by which the Village Board would hold 

a public hearing proposed to be August 20, 2012 on or after 6:00 p.m. to consider changing the 

address of 11121 4
th
 Avenue to 11027 4

th
 Avenue to resolve the aforementioned concerns.  The 

purpose of this resolution is to initiate and petition to change the official address within Pleasant 

Prairie, that this proposed change is being referred to the Plan Commission for further study and 

recommendation.  And the Village Board’s adoption of this resolution is only initiating the 

process.  It is not making a determination regarding the determination of the new address at this 

time.  The public hearing, again, will be held before the Village Plan Commission, and 

notification will be sent to the property owner.  The staff recommends approval of Resolution 12-

22. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Make a motion to approve. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

8 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Clyde, second by Mike for approval of Resolution 12-22.  Any further discussion? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

One quick question.  Jean, what number do you say it’s going to be now? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

It would go from 11121 4
th
 Avenue to 11027 4

th
 Avenue. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Okay, thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Further comment or question?   

 

 ALLEN MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #12-22 TO INITIATE THE CHANGE OF 

THE OFFICIAL ADDRESS OF 11121 4
TH

 AVENUE TO 11027 4
TH

 AVENUE; SECONDED BY 

SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 B. Consider the request of American Transmission Company (ATC) to purchase from 

the Village an Electric Transmission Line Easement at 7101 Springbrook Road for 

the 345,000 volt electric transmission line project. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, ATC has begun the process to condemn Village property for the acquisition of an 

easement along the railroad tracks for the placement of the 345 kV transmission line.  They 

prepared an appraisal of the property.  They’re offering $21,000 for 1.374 acres.  This is the 

former landfill site from the Town of Pleasant Prairie.  On that property, if you look at the map 

the section towards the south, I’m sorry, toward the north still has a landfill contamination, 

landfill items in it.  And there’s some spread from the City of Kenosha landfill. 

 

At this point here we have the opportunity or the option, it’s not really an opportunity, to accept 

the appraisal that was prepared by them for $21,000 which in my review of it it’s not a – I 

thought it was a fairly good appraisal and the comps they used were acceptable.  But we also 

could request that ATC pay for a second appraisal to be prepared by the Village’s appraiser or an 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

9 

appraiser we would choose, and then we would negotiate between those two appraisals for 

properties. 

 

At 1.3 acres, $21,000 I doubt we’re going to find somebody that says their appraiser is 100 

percent wrong.  I think we’re going to be dealing in magnitudes of maybe $2,000 to $3,000.  Our 

appraiser could say it’s less but that’s an option.  I’d have no problem accepting their 

recommendation, but on the other hand I’d also have no problem if we tell them we want to 

secure a second appraisal and evaluate that. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Mike, what is the classification of that property then as a former landfill? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

It’s institutional. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Institutional, not park? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No.  We have a shooting range out there.  You can stand on a covered landfill and shoot.  And we 

have a shed and a lift station out there that are not in the contaminated area.  But even though it’s 

probably going to add $3,000 to $4,000 on the project for ATC to go out and get another 

appraisal and do some negotiations, from the standpoint of the Village taxpayers we’d be certain 

we were obtaining the highest value for that parcel.  Again, they’re not buying the piece of land, 

they’re just buying an easement.  We would still own the land. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

But it’s not like we could put anything else on that property? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No, it’s right next to the railroad tracks.  The setbacks are such that you couldn’t put a building 

there.  We had requested, and we argued the case vigorously that this is where the power line 

should go.  It should be on that side of the railroad tracks in order to preserve property values on 

the other side where there isn’t landfills.  In this case you have a cemetery on the other side.  That 

wasn’t desirable either.  So in part in order to preserve the existing property owner values in 

Pleasant Prairie we did argue for this site to go along the west side of the tracks. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

So are you looking for a motion to allow you to authorize a second appraisal on that land? 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

10 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yes. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I’d make that motion. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Further discussion? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

That appraisal is not done at the expense of the Village.  It’s done at the expense of ATC. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

So are they postponing the consideration of the easement at this time then? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Right.  In the documents it does give us the opportunity to seek a second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

So we need a motion for that. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

So if you want to include that. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Yes, let’s include that. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mike’s motion is in order.  That was in the documents as presented to us. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

11 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

So it wasn’t the easement that we had to consider, it was whether or not we wanted to – 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

We could do both.  We could take the easement if you wanted, or we could have a second 

appraisal  prepared to take another look at it. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Okay, so we don’t have to put this on the table or postpone it.  It’s part of – okay, I just wanted to 

make sure the motion was going to be correct. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We have a motion and a second.  Steve, do you have a question or is that cleared up now?  Okay, 

no further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO REQUEST A SECOND APPRAISAL BE PREPARED IN 

RELATION TO ATC’S REQUEST TO PURCHASE FROM THE VILLAGE AN ELECTRIC 

TRANSMISSION LINE EASEMENT AT 7101 SPRINGBROOK ROAD FOR THE 345,000 VOLT 

ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0. 

 C. Consider reappointments to the Community Development Authority. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, the Community Development Authority members have a different time frame 

when they’re appointed.  Statutes require that two members from the governing body be 

appointed to the Board as well as the other member should be someone with legal training, 

financial, labor or construction.  In this cycle the Board appointments are for a one year period 

only.  So the terms that are up are John Steinbrink, Village President, Monica Yuhas, Village 

Trustee, and the third Commissioner that’s up for reconsideration is Phil Godin who is also an 

attorney.  Terms for John and Monica would run through August 5, 2013.  Mr. Godin’s term 

would be through August 5, 2017.  As the Executive Director of that Authority I’d recommend 

that the reappointments be made. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

12 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Clyde.  Any discussion on this item?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO REAPPOINT JOHN STEINBRINK AND MONICA 

YUHAS TO THE CDA FOR 1 YR APPOINTMENTS AND PHIL GODIN REAPPOINTED TO 

THE CDA FOR A 5 YEAR APPOINTMENT; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I just want to comment as Mike said it is a good mix of people on there with a very broad 

background.  They’re very diligent about their job when they come in, and it’s a real pleasure 

working with these people. 

 

 D. Consider appointment to the Recreation Commission. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, recently Travis Laib who is a member of the Recreation Commission, and a very 

valuable one, he was very active, has advised me that he needs to step down to the Commission.  

Due to his position and his work schedule it’s requiring a lot of out of town travel.  Currently on 

the Commission we have an alternate, two alternates, and my recommendation would be that 

Kate Field, she’s a horticulture instructor at Gateway College, be moved from an alternate 

position to fill the unexpired term of Travis’s term which would end at May 1, 2013. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Thank you, Mike.  I have the pleasure of serving on the Rec Commission with Kate Field, and 

she’s brought a lot of fresh, bold ideas.  She thinks outside the box.  She’s open to a lot of our 

discussion and contributes a lot to the Rec Commission.  So with that I’d like to make the motion 

to approve. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Clyde, second by Steve.  Any discussion? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

She has the gardens next to the north ball fields over there in the Village, too.  Plus, she writes a 

column in the newspaper very frequently, too.  So she’s well qualified to be in this position. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

July 16, 2012 

 

 

13 

 ALLEN MOVED TO APPOINT KATE FIELD FROM AN ALTERNATE MEMBER TO 

A REGULAR MEMBER OF THE RECREATION COMMISSION TO COMPLETE THE TERM 

OF TRAVIS LAIB TO MAY 1, 2012; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 

5-0. 

 

 E. Consent Agenda 

  1) Approve Operator License Applications on file. 

  2. Approve Renewal Operator License Applications on file. 
 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

So moved. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Clyde.  Is there any discussion on the consent agenda?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 AND 2; SECONDED BY 

ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS – None. 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION  

CARRIED 5-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:30 P.M. 



Resolution No. 12-25

Resolution of Appreciation
to Miss Chelsea Goessl

for Outstanding Community Service
During Her Tenure as Miss Pleasant Prairie 2011

WHEREAS, Miss Chelsea Goessl was named Miss Pleasant Prairie 2011 on Sunday, July 24, 2011 
during the 2011 Prairie Family Days Celebration, and;

WHEREAS, during her tenure as Miss Pleasant Prairie 2011, Miss Goessl upheld her title and 
consistently represented the Village of Pleasant Prairie with integrity and grace, and;

WHEREAS, during her tenure as Miss Pleasant Prairie 2011, Miss Goessl made 25 public appearances 
throughout several communities within Kenosha County on behalf of her title, and; 

WHEREAS, during her 25 public appearances as Miss Pleasant Prairie 2011, Miss Chelsea Goessl 
served as an inspiration and an outstanding role model for many girls and young women, and; 

WHEREAS, Miss Goessl’s tenure as Miss Pleasant Prairie ended on Saturday, July 21, 2012 when a new 
Miss Pleasant Prairie was named during the 2012 Prairie Family Days Celebration.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, 
that Miss Chelsea Goessl be formally recognized for her outstanding service to the Village of Pleasant Prairie 
during her tenure as Miss Pleasant Prairie 2011 and that she receive the most sincere thanks and appreciation of 
the Village Board and the citizens of Pleasant Prairie. 

 Considered and adopted this 6th day of August, 2012.

         
____________________________
John P. Steinbrink, President

Attest:

____________________________ 
Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk

�



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION #12-23 

 

TO INITIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN, 2035 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN RELATED TO THE JUNE 2012 AMENDMENT TO THE REGIONAL 

WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR GREATER KENOSHA AREA  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 66.0309(10) of the Wisconsin Statutes, the Southeastern 

Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC), at a meeting held on the 12th day of July 

1979, duly adopted a regional water quality management plan as documented in the three-

volume SEWRPC Planning Report No. 30, A Regional Water Quality Management Plan for 

Southeastern Wisconsin: 2000; and 

WHEREAS, SEWRPC has duly adopted an amendment to the Regional Water Quality 

Management Plan refining and detailing the Greater Kenosha sanitary sewer service area as 

documented in SEWRPC Community Assistance Planning Report No. 106, Sanitary Sewer Service 

Area for the City of Kenosha and Environs, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, November 1985, as 

amended; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated February 1, 2012, the Kenosha Water Utility requested that 

SEWRPC amend the Greater Kenosha sanitary sewer service area to include certain lands located 

outside of the currently adopted sewer service area: and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to the Regional Water Quality Management Plan is 

documented in a SEWRPC staff memorandum entitled, “Response to Request by the Kenosha 

Water Utility to Amend the Greater Kenosha Sanitary Sewer Service Area,” attached hereto and 

made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the requested change to the Regional Water Quality Management Plan, as 

documented in the aforementioned staff memorandum, was the subject of a public hearing held 

jointly by the Kenosha Water Utility and the Regional Planning Commission on March 28, 2012; 

and 

WHEREAS, Section 66.0309(9) of the Wisconsin Statutes authorizes and empowers the 

Regional Planning Commission, as the work of making the whole master plan progresses, to 

amend, extend, or add to the master plan or carry any part or subject thereof into greater detail; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Village staff supports the June 2012 Amendment to the Regional Water 

Quality Management Plan which pertains to a change in the sanitary sewer service area tributary 

to the City of Kenosha sewage treatment plan (Exhibit 1); and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 5 entitled “Utilities and Community Facilities Element” of the Village’s 

Comprehensive Plan discusses the Greater Kenosha Sanitary Sewer Service Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Comprehensive Plan shall be consistent with other Village adopted 

plans and amendments to such plans; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Board of Trustees may initiate a petition for an amendment to the 

Village Comprehensive Plan pursuant to Chapter 390 of the Village Code of Ordinances; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of Trustee, as follows: 

1. That the Village Board of Trustees hereby initiates and petitions that the Village consider 

adopting the June 2012 amendment to the Regional Water Quality Management Plan 

(Exhibit 1) as a component of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 2035 

Comprehensive Plan. 

2. That the proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan is hereby referred to the Village 

staff for further study and recommendation. 



3. That the public participation plan for the Comprehensive Plan changes included the public 

hearing held on March 28, 2012 by the Kenosha Water Utility and the SEWRPC at the 

Kenosha Municipal Building to receive public comment on, and reaction to the proposed 

sewer service area amendment where no objections were expressed.  The Village’s public 

participation plan will also include the required 30-day public notice and the required 

public hearing pursuant to Chapter 390 of the Village Municipal Code entitled, 

“Comprehensive Plan” which will be held prior to consideration by the Village Board of 

Trustees.  

4. That the Village Board of Trustees is not, by this Resolution, making any determination 

regarding the merits of the proposed changes to the Comprehensive Plan, but rather, is 

only initiating the process by which the proposed change in the Zoning Map can be 

promptly evaluated. 

Adopted this 6th day of August 2012. 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

 

______________________________________  

Jane M. Romanowski      

Village Clerk 

 

Posted: ________________ 
23- support sewrpc report no 106.docx 



pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text























VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #12-24 

RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE DISCONTINUANCE OF A PORTION OF 
120th AVENUE (WEST FRONTAGE RD) NORTH OF 104th STREET IN THE  

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 
pursuant to Section 66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes, may initiate the discontinuance in 
whole or in part of any road, street, slip, lane or alley by the introduction of a resolution 
declaring that the public interest requires it. 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie is initiating the discontinuance of a portion 
of 120th Avenue (West Frontage Road) north of 104th Street which has been designated as a 
public right-of-way; and 

WHEREAS, this portion of 120th Avenue (West Frontage Road) has been 
reconstructed as part of the I-94 reconstruction project and the existing right-of-way is no 
longer required for roadway purposes; and 

WHEREAS, municipal sanitary sewer and water infrastructure constructed in said 
right-of-way would remain with an easement granted to the Village; and  

WHEREAS, a plat of survey and legal description of the public street encompassing 
the discontinuance has been prepared and is shown on Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Plan Commission shall review said legal 
description and plat of survey and forward a recommendation to the Village Board; and 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing to consider said discontinuance shall be set not less 
than 40 days after the passage of said resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that consideration of the discontinuance is 
a matter to be decided by the Village Board at the September 17, 2012 Public Hearing. 

Adopted this the 6th day of August 2012. 
 

        VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
 
 

______________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 

ATTEST:      Village President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jane M. Romanowski 
Village Clerk 
 
VB Res #12-24 INITIAL.doc 

 
 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR EXISTING INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 94 WEST 
FRONTAGE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE TRANSFERRED  

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 
FROM: 

STATE OF WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
 

TO: 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 
Located in the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 24, Town 1 North, 
Range 21 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, described as: 
 
Commencing at the East 1/4 corner of said Section 24; thence South 02°04′30″ East, along the 
East line of said Southeast 1/4, 547.03 feet; thence South 87°55′30″ West, 365.54 feet to the 
West right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 94 and the point of beginning; thence Southerly, 
227.49 feet along said West right-of-way line and the arc of a curve whose center lies to the East, 
whose radius is 43226.84 feet, whose interior angle measures 00°18′06″ and whose chord bears 
South 02°48′01″ East, 227.49 feet; thence Southwesterly, 292.74 feet along the arc of a curve 
whose center lies to the Northwest, whose radius is 696.62 feet, whose interior angle measures 
24°04′39″ and whose chord bears South 49°25′26″ West, 290.59 feet; thence South 61°28′04″ 
West, 294.03 feet; thence Southwesterly, 861.21 feet along the arc of a curve whose center lies to 
the Southeast, whose radius is 788.83 feet, whose interior angle measures 62°33′11″ and whose 
chord bears South 30°11′28″ West, 819.07 feet; thence North 06°40′19″ West, 381.04 feet; 
thence Northeasterly, 601.02 feet along the arc of a curve whose center lies to the Southeast, 
whose radius is 908.83 feet, whose interior angle measures 37°53′25″ and whose chord bears 
North 42°31′21″ East, 590.13 feet; thence North 57°08′11″ East, 500.88 feet; thence 
Northeasterly, 208.81 feet along the arc of a curve whose center lies to the Northwest, whose 
radius is 576.62 feet, whose interior angle measures 20°44′54″ and whose chord bears North 
30°13′28″ East, 207.67 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
The above-described parcel contains 166,904 square feet (3.832 acres) of land more or less. 
 
Basis of Existing Right-of-Way: 
Plat of Right of Way Required for STH 165 Interchange 
R/W Project Number 1032-04-20 
State Project Number 1032-04-74 
Federal Project Number AC IR 94-6(70) 346                                                                                           
 
CRISPELL-SNYDER, INC. 
Professional Consultants 
July 8, 2009 
MWR 
 
P.N. R08-0007-117 

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

pherrick
Typewritten Text



LOCATION:

SCALE: DATE:

DRAWN BY:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
/P

L
O

T
 D

A
T

E

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS   
Lake Geneva (262)348-5600 Madison (608)244-6277 Milwaukee Regional (262)250-8000

Racine (262)554-8530  Fox Valley (715)752-4620

E
x

h
i
b

i
t
 T

r
a
n

s
f
e
r
 W

i
s
D

O
T

 t
o

 V
i
l
l
a
g

e
.d

g
n

 7
/
8

/
0

9
 M

W
R

R08-0007-117

M. RUBENDALL

1"=200’

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

REAL ESTATE TRANSFER: WisDOT  TO THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE

T 1N

R
2

2
E

24

25

19

30R
2

1
E

T 1N

R
2

2
E

24

24

19

19R
2

1
E

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 9

4

CTH Q

(104TH STREET)

STH 165

(104TH STREET)

E
A

S
T

 L
I
N

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

 S
O

U
T

H
E

A
S

T
 1

/4
 O

F
 S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 2

4
-
1
-
2
1

NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 24-1-21

SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 24-1-21

RIG
HT-O

F-W
AY FOR R

EALIG
NED

W
EST FRONTAGE R

OAD

BASIS OF EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY:

S
0
2
^
0
4
’
3
0
"
E

 5
4
7
.0

3
’

POB S87^55’30"W 365.54’

C
1

C
3

C
4

C
5

N
57^08’1

1"E
 5

00.8
8’

CURVE TABLE

# LENGTH RADIUS CHORD CHORD BEARINGDELTA

00^18’06"

24^04’39"

62^33’11"

37^53’25"

227.49’

590.13’

227.49’

292.74’

788.83’

601.02’ 908.83’

S02^48’01"E

S49^25’46"W

S30^11’28"W

N42^31’21"E

20^44’54"576.62’ N30^13’28"E

1

2

3

4

5

EXISTING WEST FRONTAGE ROAD

RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE TRANSFERRED

FROM WisDOT TO THE VILLAGE

OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE.

LEGEND

43226.84’

696.62’ 290.59’

861.21’ 819.07’

208.81’ 207.67’

AREA

166,904 S.F. (3.832 ACRES)

N
0
6
^
4
0
’
1
9
"
W

 3
8
1
.0

4
’

W
E

S
T

 F
R

O
N

T
A

G
E

 R
O

A
D

(1
2
0
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E
)

JULY 2009

S61^28’0
4"W

 2
94.0

3’

C
2

PLAT OF RIGHT OF WAY REQUIRED FOR STH 165 INTERCHANGE

RIGHT-OF-WAY PROJECT NUMBER 1032-04-20

STATE PROJECT NUMBER 1032-04-74

FEDERAL PROJECT NUMBER AC IR 94-6(70) 346



 

8600 Green Bay Road, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.925.6765   FAX 262.694.2941 

Office of the Village 

Director of Public Works 

John Steinbrink, Jr. 

 

 

To: Michael Pollocoff 
From: John Steinbrink, Jr. 
Subject: Single Stream Recycling Contract 
Date: July 31, 2012 
 
The Pleasant Prairie Sanitation Division is currently under contract with Veolia ES Solid Waste 
Midwest, LLC for single stream recycling services until August 3, 2012.  Pleasant Prairie 
collection trucks collect the recyclable material curbside for all residential properties and haul 
the recyclables to Veolia’s facility located at 5421 46th St in Kenosha.  Pleasant Prairie hauls 
approximately 2,200 tons of recyclable material to this location annually.  The material is baled 
in Kenosha and hauled to a processing facility by Veolia. 
 
Village staff has received two estimates for recycling processing services, one from Veolia and 
another from John’s Disposal in Franklin.  Pleasant Prairie will still collect the recyclable material 
curbside and haul to the processing site.   
 
  Veolia  Johns Disposal 
Distance  3 miles  31 miles 
Tipping fee  $  9.98  $45.00 
Backhaul charge  $  8.94  $  0.00 
Annual estimated charge  $41,624 $99,000 
Recycling rebate   See chart* 80% of market value 
 
*Veolia Rebate Chart 
Value of material  Village charge or rebate 
Below $0.00 per ton  Village pays cost 
$0.00 - $40.00 per ton Village rebate of 50% value of material 
$40.01-$80.00 per ton Village rebate of 65% value of material 
$80.01 and greater  Village rebate of 80% value of material 
 
Veolia has the distinct advantage based on location and lower tipping fee.  Johns Disposal is 
located 31 miles away.  This would add 1.5 hours per day to the recycling route and would 
require adding a partial truck to the recycling route daily.  Johns is offering a higher rebate but 
the costs are more than offset by the higher tipping fee and distance as compared to Veolia. 
 
I recommend a contract extension be awarded to Veolia ES Solid Waste Midwest, LLC per the 
terms of the attached contract. 
 

 
* * * * * * * * *

 

































 

8600 Green Bay Road, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.925.6765   FAX 262.694.2941 

Office of the Village 

Director of Public Works 

John Steinbrink, Jr. 

 

 
 
To: Michael Pollocoff 
From: John Steinbrink, Jr. 
Subject: Solid Waste Landfill Contract 
Date: July 30, 2012 

The Village is currently under contract with Veolia ES Zion Landfill, Inc. to accept solid waste material 
at their disposal site located in Zion, IL until August 17, 2012.  The Village currently pays a tipping fee 
of $42.50 per ton. Village staff will continue to collect solid waste every week in the Village issued 
collection carts.  This proposal details where the Village brings the solid waste material to be 
landfilled.   
 
Pleasant Prairie has paid the following for landfill tipping fees to Veolia at the Zion landfill: 
 
2009 $38.50 
2010 $41.00 
2011 $42.50 
Current $42.50 
 
Two proposals were received for Landfill tipping fees 
 
 Veolia  Waste Management 
2012 $42.50   $38.50 
2013 $43.35   $39.42 
2014 $44.22   $40.38 
      
The proposals were evaluated for annual tipping fee cost and travel cost to the landfill.  The Village 
disposes of approximately 6,200 tons of solid waste per year.  The travel time to Veolia from the 
Prange Center is 5 minutes and the travel time to Waste Management is 25 minutes.  The Public 
Works Department sends three trucks a day at a cost for labor and vehicle of $100 per hour each.  
 
      Veolia Waste Management 
Estimated tipping fee cost year 1  $263,500         $238,700 
Estimated tipping fee cost year 2  $268,770         $244,404 
Estimated tipping fee cost year 3  $274,164         $250,356 
Village transportation cost year 1  $  13,000         $  65,000 
Village transportation cost year 2  $  13,000         $  65,000 
Village transportation cost year 3  $  13,000         $  65,000 
Solid waste disposal cost   $845,434         $928,460 
 
 

I recommend the contract be awarded to Veolia ES Zion Landfill, Inc. for landfilling (tipping) fees per 
the attached contract. 

 









 

8600 Green Bay Road, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.925.6765   FAX 262.694.2941 

Office of the Village 

Director of Public Works 

John Steinbrink, Jr. 

 

 

 
 
 
To: Michael Pollocoff 
From: John Steinbrink, Jr. 
Subject: Well Permit Program 
Date: July 31, 2012 

 

The Public Works Department is requesting a revision to Ordinance §355.16 to follow Wisconsin 
Administrative Code Chapter NR 810.16 requiring only one safe water sample as part of the 
well permitting program as required by DNR.  Currently the Village requires two safe samples 
two weeks apart to be eligible for a well permit.    

Wells are allowed by permit to residents having both a well and municipal water connection.  
The well may have one outside faucet and must not be cross connected with the municipal 
water system.   

Staff is also requesting to add the cost of a well permit at $25.00 which would be valid for 5 
years.  In the case of a shared well, only the parcel containing the physical well will be required 
to have a well permit.  Any residences connected to a shared well will need to pass all required 
inspections and one safe water sample. 

 

* * * * * * * * *

 

 



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-22 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 355 

OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE  

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN  

RELATING TO PRIVATE WELLS 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ESTABLISHED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin that Section 355 of the Municipal Code be 

amended as follows: 

 

§ 355-16 Private Well Regulation Program. 

 

A.  Purpose. To prevent unused, unsafe and noncomplying wells from acting as vertical 

conduits for aquifer contamination or as sources of unsafe water that could enter the 

public water system through cross-connections.   

 

B. Required Well Abandonment 

 

(1) Wells that do not have a valid operational permit issued, wells which are not routinely 

used, wells which are in noncompliance with § NR 812 or wells which test 

bacteriologically unsafe, shall be property sealed and abandoned in accordance with §  

NR 812 by an established date not to exceed one year from date of connection to the 

public water system or date of discovery or construction. 

 

(2) A well abandonment certification shall be submitted by the well owner to the 

Department of Natural Resources on forms provided by that agency.  The report shall 

be submitted immediately upon completion of the filling of the well. 

 

(3) Only those wells for which a well operation permit has been granted by the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie may be exempted from this requirement subject to the conditions of 

maintenance and operation as set forth in this chapter. 

 

C.  Well operation permits. A permit may be granted to a well owner to operate a well to 

service outdoor hose bibs only for a period not to exceed five years if the following 

requirements are met: 

 

(1) The well and pump installation meet the requirements of § NR, 812 Wis. Adm. Code,  

and the well constructor's report is on file with the Department of Natural Resources, 

or certification of the acceptability of the well has been granted by the Private Water 

Supply Section of the Department of Natural Resources. 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

(2) In accordance with  § NR 810.16 Wis. Adm. Code,  a minimum of one safe sample  

shall be taken prior to issuing or reissuing the permit to establish that the water is 

bacteriologically safe. 

 

(3) The proposed use of the well can be justified as being necessary in addition to water  

provided by the public water system. 

 

(4) No physical connection shall exist between the piping of the public water system and  

the private well in accordance with § NR 810.15 Wis. Adm. Code. 

 

D. Cost of Well Operation Permit.  The cost to obtain a well operation permit is $25, which 

permit is valid for five years.  In the case of a shared well, only the parcel containing the physical 

well will be required obtain a permit.  Any dwelling connected to a shared well must pass all 

required inspections and produce one safe water sample as required by the permit holder. 

 

Passed and adopted this 6th day of August, 2012. 

 

      VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      John P. Steinbrink, President 

    

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk 

 

 

Posted:___________ 





 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-23 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 285 

OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE  

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN  

RELATING TO SANITARY SEWER DEFINITIONS  

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ESTABLISHED by the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin that Section 285 of the 

Municipal Code be amended as follows: 

 

§ 285-15.  Definitions 

CATEGORY B 

 

Those sanitary sewer users who discharge wastewater with BOD concentration in excess 

of 180 mg/l of BOD, 200 mg/l of suspended solids, six mg/l of phosphorus, or 100 mg/l 

of oil and grease. Users whose wastewater exceeds the concentrations for any one of 

these parameters shall be in Category B and subject to a sanitary sewer surcharge 

unless and until the concentrations are below the thresholds listed for 24 consecutive 

months. 

 

COMMERCIAL 

 

Those users that operate an enterprise that sells, rents or provides services to 

customers or tenants whether it operates as a for profit or no-profit enterprise. 

 

NONRESIDENTIAL 

Customers category which includes all sewer users other than residential users. 

Nonresidential customers include but are not limited to public buildings, commercial 

establishments, industrial establishments, recreation halls, municipal buildings, 

clubhouses, mobile home parks, apartment complexes and funeral homes.  

Nonresidential customers are subject to random sanitary sewer surcharge testing.  

Any domestic wastewater tested and results found over the listed thresholds will 

place the customer as a category B user. 

PRIVATE SEWER 

 

Any privately owned sewer, storm drain, sanitary sewer, or combined sewer with 

discharges into a publicly sewer.  Private sewers are required to discharge normal 

domestic strength wastewater.  Any private sewer that discharges wastewater above 

the listed thresholds will be listed as a category B user. 

http://www.ecode360.com/9354293#9354293
http://www.ecode360.com/9354305#9354305


 2 

 

PUBLIC AUTHORITY 

Any government chartered by the statutes of the State of Wisconsin as a corporation  

that has the ability to levy taxes or user charges that is governed by an elected body. 

 

SANITARY SEWER SURCHARGE 

 

A charge levied on users of the wastewater and treatment facilities to category B 

users. 

 

§ 285-18.  Control of industrial and nonresidential wastes directed to public  

Sewers 

C.  Control manholes. Each person discharging industrial or commercial nonresidential 

wastes into a public sewer shall, at the discretion of the approving authority, construct 

and maintain one or more control manholes or access points to facilitate observation, 

measurement, and sampling of wastes, including sanitary sewage. 

 

F.  Waste sampling. Industrial and nonresidential wastes discharged into the public 

sewers shall be subject to periodic inspection and a determination of character and 

concentration of said wastes. The determination shall be made for the industry and 

nonresidential user as often as may be deemed necessary by the approving authority. 

 

(3)   The approving authority shall determine whether sampling by district  

 employees and/or contractor's findings shall be used when presented with  

 contrary sampling information. An industry or nonresidential user may 

split samples with the Districts upon request by the industry or 

nonresidential user. 

 

§ 285-19 Basis for sewer service charge.  

F.  Deduct meters. 

 

(1) If an industrial or nonresidential user feels that a significant amount of  

 metered water does not reach the sanitary sewer, he can, at his own  

 expense, with approval of the approving authority, install such additional  

 meters or metered services as are necessary to calculate the volume of  

 water not discharged to the sanitary sewer. Metered water not discharged  

 to the sanitary sewer shall not be subject to sewer service charges. 

 

http://www.ecode360.com/9354363#9354363
http://www.ecode360.com/9354368#9354368
http://www.ecode360.com/9354371#9354371
http://www.ecode360.com/9354383#9354383
http://www.ecode360.com/9354389#9354389
http://www.ecode360.com/9354390#9354390


 3 

Passed and adopted this 6th day of August, 2012. 

 

      VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      John P. Steinbrink, President 

    

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk 

 

Posted:___________ 



     
 

9915 39th Ave, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.948-8951 

Office of the Village Engineer 

Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 

 M E M O 
Office of the Village 

Engineer/Building Inspection 

Michael Spence, P.E., LEED
®

AP 

 

 

      TO: Mike Pollocoff, Village Administrator 

 

     CC:  Jane Romanowski, Village Clerk 

 

FROM: Mike Spence, P.E., Village Engineer 

  

 DATE: August 3, 2012 

 

SUBJ: Professional Environmental Services Agreement 

TBD 

BP Illicit Discharge and Contamination 

 

 

The Pleasant Prairie Engineering Department requested proposals from two professional 

environmental engineering firms to assist the Village in its efforts to address the ongoing release 

of petroleum product in stormwater ditch. The ditch is located adjacent to the BP Gasoline 

Station located at 10477 120
th

 Avenue in Pleasant Prairie. 

 

The requested services include the review and evaluation of existing available environmental 

information, conduct a limited subsurface assessment/investigation with a goal of identifying the 

source of the release and delineating the extent of the release and identify remedial options to be 

undertaken. A summary report will be prepared. In addition, the scope includes the possibility of 

expert witness testimony should that be required. 

 

Proposals were received from Drake Consulting Group, LLC out of Mequon, Wisconsin and 

Symbiont out of West Allis, Wisconsin. 

 

Both proposals were very thorough in addressing the listed scope issues. Drake Consulting 

Group has worked in the Village before having performed environmental work for the strip mall 

off of 91
st
 St and Springbrook Rd. in Pleasant Prairie. The Drake proposal more closely matched 

the stated goals. 

 

The attached proposal from Drake Consulting Group LLC details the scope of services for this 

work. The total fee for these services will be $20,800. This fee is an upper end estimate and the 

scope activities will be modified as required to address react to the actions of the Owner and the 

Owner’s environmental engineer.  

 

I recommend that the agreement from Drake Consulting Group LLC be approved. 

 

 



 

 
August 3, 2012 
 
Mr. Michael Spence 
Village Engineer 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
RE: Proposed Scope of Work and Cost Estimate for a Technical Project File Review, 

Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment and Summary Report Describing 
Potentially Applicable Remedial Options Relating to a Petroleum Release(s) Within 
a Ditch Near the 10477 120th Avenue Address in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, 
Wisconsin.  — Drake Proposal No. J12005. 

 
Dear Mr. Spence: 
 
As requested, Drake Consulting Group, LLC (Drake) has prepared this proposal to 
conduct certain requested environmental consulting services in connection with an 
apparent petroleum release(s) within a ditch near the 10477 120th Avenue property.  This 
proposal presents a proposed scope of work and cost estimate for the various tasks 
described below. 
 
Project Background 
 
It is Drake’s understanding that the Village of Pleasant Prairie is interested in further 
identifying, preliminarily delineating and evaluating a petroleum-related release(s) in the 
vicinity of the ditch near the 10477 120th Avenue property (the 10477 120th Avenue 
property is currently in use as a gasoline station).  It is understood that the Pleasant 
Prairie Fire & Rescue Department reported the presence of free product (light non-
aqueous phase liquid or LNAPL) in the drainage ditch north of the gasoline station 
during a response to a petroleum odor complaint on April 25, 2010.  It is Drake’s 
understanding that the discharge of LNAPL product to the ditch is continuing.  As such, 
it is our understanding that the Village of Pleasant Prairie desires to retain an 
environmental consultant in order to assist the Village Engineering Department staff in 
reviewing and evaluating available environmental information regarding this release and 
adjoining sites, conduct a limited subsurface assessment/investigation with a goal of 
identifying (if possible) the source of the release and preliminarily delineating the extent 
of the release, and to prepare a Summary Report describing potentially applicable 



2 

remedial options and/or corrective measures which may be undertaken to address the 
release and the impact the release may have had/is having on the environment. 
 
Scope of Work/Cost Estimates 
 
Task 1: Site Reconnaissance & WDNR/Village File Review 
 
Task 1 will involve the review of available WDNR and Village file information in an 
effort to identify potential sources of petroleum release(s) in the vicinity of the ditch.  
Drake will contact the WDNR project manager to discuss the current status of 
environmental investigation/remediation efforts associated with adjoining parcels and 
discuss the planned subsurface assessment activities.  A summary report of findings will 
then be prepared based on Drake’s review of the WDNR and Village file information. 
 
The estimated cost to complete Task 1 is $5,000 
 
Task 2: Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment 
 
Task 2 will involve the installation of approximately eight (8) direct-push soil borings to 
depths of approximately 15 feet below ground surface (bgs) with completion of the eight 
borings as temporary monitoring wells.  Following the completion of soil sampling, 
approximately eight “grab” samples of groundwater will be collected and preserved for 
laboratory analysis if groundwater is present within 15 feet of ground surface at the 
completion of the soil sampling activities.  The groundwater samples collected will be 
analyzed by the laboratory for VOCs. 
 
Drake anticipates submitting approximately sixteen (16) soil samples for laboratory 
analysis of VOCs; approximately eight (8) soil samples for laboratory analysis of PAHs 
and approximately eight (8) groundwater samples for laboratory analysis of VOCs (in the 
event that PAH soil concentrations are significantly elevated, groundwater samples could 
be obtained at a later time from the temporary wells for analysis of PAHs and therefore 
the costs for PAH analysis of water samples have not been included within this proposal 
as a potential cost-savings measure).  Prior to sampling the temporary wells, an interface 
probe will be used to check for the potential presence of free product and the 
groundwater elevation at each temporary well location will be obtained prior to 
development. 
 
Following the completion of the field activities and the receipt of the laboratory 
analytical results, Drake will compile the information and prepare a Limited Phase II 
Environmental Site Assessment Report.  The report will include laboratory analytical 



3 

reports, soil boring logs, field data, groundwater elevation data, tabulated soil & 
groundwater analytical data and diagrams depicting the site layout, boring locations and 
potentiometric surface map(s)/groundwater flow diagrams based on the information 
derived during the assessment.  The Phase II services have been designed to evaluate the 
presence or absence of petroleum contamination in the soil and groundwater of the 
subject property. 
 
Drake proposes to provide the following services to complete the Phase II: 
 
 Coordinate the activities to be provided by the soil boring contractor and a DNR-

certified analytical laboratory. 
 Coordinate the project with the selected contractor and laboratory. 
 Document the advancement of approximately eight soil borings. 
 Collect continuous soil core samples from each soil boring. 
 Visually examine each soil core, and field screen a portion of each two-foot 

segment of soil core with a photoionization detector (PID) to evaluate preliminary 
indications of contamination. 

 Continuous soil samples will be collected from each of the eight boring locations 
for field evaluation, and approximately two representative soil samples from each 
boring will be preserved for laboratory analysis.   

 Collect eight “grab” groundwater samples from the temporary well locations. 
 Preserve and submit selected soil and groundwater samples to the laboratory for 

analysis to evaluate the presence or absence of contamination. 
 Compile and evaluate the field and laboratory results. 
 Prepare a written report presenting the results of the Limited Phase II ESA, along 

with Drake’s conclusions and recommendations based on the results. 
 
The estimated costs to complete Task 2 are as follows: 
 

Soil Boring Contractor Services $  3,300 
Certified Analytical Laboratory Services 2,500 
Drake’s Project Coordination, Fieldwork, and Data Analysis 3,000 
Drake’s Project Management and Documentation 3,500 

Task 2 Estimated Cost:  $12,300 
 
Task 3:  Summary Report  
 
Following the completion of the Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment 
Report, Drake staff will meet with the Village’s engineer to develop an outline for a 
Summary Report which will describe potentially applicable remedial options or 
corrective actions which may be undertaken to address the release and the impact the 
release may have had/is having on the environment. The Summary Report will include a 
summary of the findings from Tasks 1 & 2 and will provide recommendations to the 
Village as regards future actions they may consider taking. 



4 

 
The estimated cost to complete Task 3 is $3,500. 
 
Summary of Costs 
 
As indicated above, the estimated costs for the proposed scope of work contained within 
this proposal are as follows: 
 
Task 1 – Site Reconnaissance/File Review     $ 5,000 
Task 2 – Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment   $12,300 
Taks 3 – Summary Report       $  3,500 
     Estimated Total:   $20,800 
 
The above project costs are based on the scope of work described in this proposal, and do 
not include costs associated with additional soil and/or groundwater assessment, 
investigation, monitoring, site closure, disposal of investigative waste or well 
abandonment.  Drake assumes that access will be provided to the proposed probe 
locations.  Due to site conditions, the actual project costs may vary from the estimate, 
which is provided to allow for a general expectation of the project cost.  If additional 
services are requested or considered warranted by the Village, Drake will obtain 
authorization for the additional scope of work and costs prior to proceeding.   
 
Estimated Timeframe 
 
The Task 1 - Site Reconnaissance Activities and WDNR/Village File Review Activities 
can be initiated following the Village’s acceptance of this proposal. 
 
As regards Task 2 – Conduct of a  Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment, 
approximately one week is typically required to clear utilities, select a drilling contractor 
and analytical laboratory, and schedule the fieldwork.  Following sample collection and 
submittal, laboratory testing of soil and groundwater samples typically requires 
approximately two weeks to be completed.  (Note: Expedited laboratory testing can be 
provided at an additional cost – please contact Drake for current rates for rush sample 
analysis).  Preliminary findings can be discussed immediately after receipt of the 
laboratory analysis report, but approximately one to two weeks is typically required to 
evaluate the results and prepare a written report documenting the Limited Phase II 
activities. 
 



5 

Task 3 – Summary Report preparation activities can be commenced following the 
completion of the Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment and/or concurrently 
with the preparation of the Task 2 report if requested by the Village Engineering Staff. 
 
The proposed environmental services will be invoiced in accordance with our estimated 
project costs outlined above, unless site conditions vary from those which are anticipated.  
Drake’s labor charges for the scope of services outlined above will be based on a 
$90/hour billing.  The proposed scope of work will be conducted under the Contract 
Terms and Conditions provided in Drake’s proposal number J12005.  To indicate 
acceptance of the scope of work and associated costs, please sign below and return a 
copy of this proposal to Drake.  If Drake is given verbal authorization to proceed without 
first receiving a signed copy, it is to be mutually understood that both parties will be 
contractually bound by this proposal.   
 
The attached Contract Terms and Conditions are expressly incorporated into, and an 
integral part of this contract for professional services.  If the terms in the foregoing 
proposal are inconsistent in any way with the pre-printed contract Terms and Conditions, 
the language in this Proposal shall predominate and be controlling.  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to propose environmental consulting services for this 
project.  Please call us at (262) 241-0005 if you have any questions or if you need 
additional information. 
 
Respectfully, 
DRAKE Consulting Group, LLC 

 
D.J. Burns - Project Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

                                                 DRAKE Consulting Group, LLC 

CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 

 The Terms and Conditions contained in this contract for Services shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 

Drake Consulting Group, LLC hereinafter called Drake, and the Client, whether individual or corporate whose name and 

status appear at the end of this contract as part of the signature portion hereof.  Said party shall hereinafter be referred to as 

Client. 

I. STANDARD OF CARE 

A. Drake represents that it will conduct its services with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 

exercised by members of the environmental consulting community practicing under similar conditions at 

the same time in the same or similar locality.  NO OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 

EITHER AT COMMON LAW OR BY STATUTE, IS INCLUDED IN THIS AGREEMENT OR IN 

ANY ORAL OR WRITTEN REPORT, OPINION DOCUMENT OR OTHERWISE, AND CLIENT 

ACCEPTS SAID LIMITED WARRANTY. 

II. INFORMATION PROVIDED FOR CLIENT'S EXCLUSIVE USE 

A. Any information provided by Drake to the Client pursuant to the services rendered under this 

Agreement, whether it be in oral or written form, is intended for Client's sole use and Drake is not 

responsible for interpretation or use of the information by others.  Reuse, change, or alteration of any oral 

or written information by Client or others acting through or on behalf of Client will be at Client's sole 

risk.  Client agrees to indemnify Drake, its agents, and employees from all claims and liabilities 

(including reasonable attorneys fees) arising out of or related to such unauthorized reuse, change or 

alteration. 

III. CONFIDENTIALITY 

A. Drake agrees to maintain confidentiality regarding any information obtained as a result of 

services performed by Drake under this Agreement.  Client understands, however, that circumstances 

may arise in which Drake and/or Client is required by law to report the existence of certain hazardous 

substances or conditions to a local, state, or federal government agency.  Drake will take reasonable 

effort to notify Client as soon after discovery as is practicable of any hazardous substances or conditions 

that require reporting, however, Drake does not by this Agreement assume the Client's legal 

responsibility to notify appropriate agencies as required by law.  Drake's obligation to maintain 

confidentiality shall not apply to disclosures compelled by law or an order or subpoena of a court of 

competent jurisdiction. 

IV. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

A. Drake shall furnish two (2) copies of each report to Client.  Additional copies will be furnished 

at the rates specified in the fee schedule.  With the exception of Drake's reports to Client, all documents, 

including but not limited to boring logs, field data and notes, laboratory test data, calculations, and 

estimates remain the property of Drake. 



7 

V. DISCLOSURES OF CLIENT 

A. The Client shall notify Drake of all hazardous substances, or conditions of which it has any 

knowledge or which it reasonably suspects exist at the project site upon entering this Agreement.  

Thereafter, Client shall notify Drake immediately upon discovery of any other hazardous substances 

and/or conditions, or upon discovery of increased concentrations of previously disclosed substances.  

Hazardous substances and/or conditions shall include but not be limited to any substance(s) or conditions 

which pose or may pose a hazard to human health or the environment whether contained in a product, 

material, by-product, waste or sample, and whether it exists in solid, liquid, semi-solid, or gaseous form. 

B. Following disclosure as set forth in paragraph A above, or if any hazardous substances and/or 

conditions are discovered or reasonably suspected by Drake, Drake has the right to suspend its services 

in whole or in part.  If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to this section, Client shall pay Drake for all 

services conducted and expenses incurred up to and including the date of termination. 

VI. CHANGED CONDITIONS 

A. Client and Drake agree that the discovery of unanticipated hazardous substances or conditions 

constitutes a changed condition which may require a renegotiation of the scope of work or termination of 

services.  Client shall rely on Drake's judgment as to the continued adequacy of this Agreement in light 

of discoveries that were not anticipated or known.  If Drake determines that renegotiation is necessary, 

Drake and Client shall in good faith enter into renegotiation of this Agreement to permit Drake to 

continue to meet Client's needs.  If renegotiated terms cannot be agreed to, Client agrees that Drake has 

the right to terminate this Agreement.  If the Agreement is terminated Client shall pay Drake for all 

services conducted and expenses incurred up to and including the date of termination. 

VII. CLIENT-PROVIDED INFORMATION 

A. Drake is entitled to rely on all information furnished by Client.  If the scope of services 

includes soil borings, construction of groundwater wells, excavation of soils or test pits, Client is 

responsible for providing Drake with a diagram(s) indicating the location and boundaries of the site and 

the locations of any underground utilities or structures (pipes, tanks, cables, sewers, other utilities, etc.) 

and approve each boring/test pit location. 

B. Client agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Drake, its officers, agents, employees, contractors, 

subcontractors, and consultants harmless from all claims or liabilities (including reasonable attorneys 

fees) arising out of or related to any errors or omissions in any oral or written information provided by 

the Client. 

VIII. ACCESS 

A. If services to be provided under this Agreement require the agents, employees, contractors, 

subcontractors, or consultants of Drake to enter the project site, Client shall arrange for access to the site 

to conduct the planned field observations or services. 

IX. UNAVOIDABLE CONTAMINATION 

A. Clients understands that surface and subsurface sampling can result in unavoidable 

contamination, such as when a boring device moves through contaminated soils containing hazardous 



8 

substances then enters a previously uncontaminated aquifer that is capable of dispersing the hazardous 

substances.  Client also understands that when it is known, assumed or suspected that hazardous 

substances exist on or beneath the surface of the project site, certain waste materials, such as drill 

cuttings and fluids, would be handled as if contaminated.  Accordingly, Drake will appropriately contain 

and label such materials, inform Client that containerization and labeling has been performed, and will 

leave the containers on-site for proper, lawful removal, transport and disposal by Client. 

B. Client waives any claim against Drake, and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Drake, its 

officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, and consultants harmless from any claim, or 

liability (including reasonable attorneys fees) which may arise as a result of contamination due to 

sampling or assumedly contaminated materials being left on-site by Drake, except those claims or 

liabilities which arise due to the sole negligence of Drake. 

X. SAMPLES 

A. All samples of soil, rock, water, and other samples will be discarded 60 days after submission 

of the report unless the Client advises Drake in writing to the contrary.  Upon request, samples will be 

delivered to the Client pursuant to Client's direction.  Client will be charged for collection, shipment, 

delivery, delivery storage, and handling costs. 

XI. SITE RESTORATION 

A. Drake shall take reasonable precautions to minimize damage to the site due to its operations, 

but has not included in its fee the cost of restoration for any damage resulting from its operations.  At 

Client's request and cost, Drake will restore the site to the conditions existing prior to Drake's operations. 

XII. INSURANCE COVERAGE 

A. Drake represents that it maintains Worker's Compensation Insurance, professional liability 

insurance, commercial general liability, and contractor's pollution legal liability insurance which Drake 

deems reasonable and adequate.  Insurance certificates will be provided upon Client's request to evidence 

such coverage.  In the event Client requires specific inclusions of coverage in addition to that obtained by 

Drake, or increased limits of liability in Drake's liability policies, the cost of such inclusions or increased 

limits shall be borne by the Client.  Drake shall not be responsible for claims, damages, losses, and 

expenses arising out of or resulting from acts and/or omissions of the Client. 

XIII. ESTIMATE OF COSTS/BILLINGS AND PAYMENTS 

A. Client understands that the estimates of project costs provided in all proposals, are for 

informational purposes, and are made by Drake on the basis of its experience and judgment.  Client also 

understands that Drake has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished 

by others, and that estimates of project costs are not a representation or warranty of the actual costs 

which will be incurred in the completion of Drake's services.  If the project proposal includes a lump sum 

fee, project costs will not exceed the lump sum amount unless a change in the scope of work is 

necessary.  The fees listed on Drake's Fee Schedule may be subject to annual increases, on January 1 of 

each new year. 



9 

B. Drake shall submit monthly invoices for services provided and expenses incurred and not 

previously billed or included in any preceding invoice.  Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  In the 

event Drake subcontracts services, invoices for subcontractor service and material costs (including but 

not limited to drilling, excavating and laboratory analysis) will be submitted to client, and are due upon 

receipt.  In the event Drake does not subcontract services (including but not limited to drilling, 

excavating or laboratory analytical services), and these services are independently contracted by Client, 

Client authorizes Drake to receive copies of invoices for these services in order for Drake to review the 

invoices for completeness and accuracy.  It is the responsibility of Client to provide Drake with copies of 

the invoices or to make arrangements with the independently contracted service provider to forward 

copies of the invoices to Drake for review.  Any payment not received within 30 days of the date of the 

invoice shall be considered delinquent and the amounts due Drake thereafter shall include a finance 

charge of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month for each month from the date of the invoice.  In 

the event any payment due Drake is delinquent, Drake has the right to suspend all services until all 

delinquencies have been remedied. 

C. If the Client has any objections to the invoice, Client shall provide Drake with a clear written 

statement within 15 days of the receipt of the invoice setting forth the objections.  Failure to provide such 

written objection constitutes acceptance of the invoice. 

XIV. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

A. Client agrees that Drake's total aggregate liability to Client is limited to $50,000 or the total 

amount of Drake's fee, whichever is greater, for any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses, expenses, 

or claim expenses (including attorney's fees) arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes not 

covered by the policies of insurance listed in Section XII of this Contract.  For those injuries, damages, 

claims, losses, expenses, or claim expenses covered by the policies of insurance listed in Section XII, 

Client agrees that Drake's total aggregate liability to Client is limited to the limits of coverage of each 

policy.  In no event shall Drake be liable for any special, incidental, or consequential loss or damages. 

B. Client further agrees to notify any contractor, subcontractor or consultant who conducts work 

in connection with any design, report or study prepared by Drake of the limitation as set forth in 

paragraph A above, and require as a condition precedent to the performance of their work a like 

limitation of liability on their part as against Drake. 

C. Drake makes no representations or warranties regarding the certification status of any 

subcontracted or independently contracted laboratory.  In the event a laboratory's certification is 

suspended or revoked, Drake shall not be liable for the costs of additional sampling or analysis that are 

associated with the laboratory's loss of certification. 

XV. INDEMNIFICATION 

A. Drake shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Client against any claim, liability, losses, 

demands, damages, fines, penalties, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys fees) to the 

extent such matter arises from the negligence or willful misconduct of Drake. 



10 

B. Client shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Drake against any claim, liability, losses, 

demands, damages, fines, penalties, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys fees) to the 

extent such matter arises from the negligence or willful misconduct of Client. 

C. In the event that any claim for indemnification hereunder arises from the negligence or willful 

misconduct of both Drake and Client, the parties agree that any and all liabilities, losses, claims, 

damages, fines, penalties, costs, and expenses shall be apportioned between the parties on the basis of 

their comparative degrees of fault. 

XVI. MEDIATION-ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES 

A. All claims, disputes, or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, 

application or enforcement of this Agreement or any breach thereof, including, but not limited to, 

disputes arising out of alleged design defects, breaches of contract, errors, omissions, or acts of 

professional negligence, or the arbitrability of such disputes, shall be decided by a final and binding 

arbitration decision by an arbitrator in accordance with the procedures set forth in the remaining 

paragraphs of this section.  This arbitration procedure shall apply to all disputes including those arising 

out of death and/or bodily injury. 

B. The authority of the arbitrator shall extend to disputes arising on or after the date of Drake's 

contract.  Any party shall request, in writing, arbitration of any dispute within twenty (20) calendar days 

of the date that it knew or should reasonably have known of the dispute.  In no event shall the demand 

for arbitration be made more than three (3) years from the date of substantial completion of Drake's 

participation in the project. 

C. The Client and Drake shall select by mutual agreement a neutral arbitrator within seven (7) 

calendar days of the date of receipt by the other party of the written request for arbitration.  In the event 

of failure to reach such agreement, or in any instance when the selected arbitrator is unable or unwilling 

to serve and a replacement cannot be agreed upon by the Client and Drake, such successor arbitrator shall 

be chosen as specified in the Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. 

D. The obligation to meditate/arbitrate disputes shall not apply to any dispute as to payment or 

non-payment of a bill, invoice or account, it being expressly agreed that all such collection-related 

litigation is not subject to arbitration or mediation. 

E. The parties mutually agree that the Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, 

shall be applicable to any arbitration required by this agreement. 

XVII. RECOVERY OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION COSTS 

A. In the event that legal action, other than collection related litigation is brought by either party 

against the other, the prevailing party shall be reimbursed by the other for the prevailing party's legal 

costs, in addition to whatever other judgments or settlement sums, if any, may be due.  Such legal costs 

shall include, but not be limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, expert witness fees, and other 

documented expenses, as well as the value of time spent by the prevailing party and those in his/her 

employ in researching the issues in question, discussing matters with attorneys and others, preparing for 

depositions, responding to interrogatories, and so on.  The value of time spent and the expenses incurred 



11 

shall, on Drake's part, be computed based upon Drake's prevailing fee schedule and expense 

reimbursement policy relative to the recovery of direct project costs. 

XVIII. TERMINATION - CURING A BREACH 

A. In the event either party believes that the other has committed a material breach of this 

Agreement, the party maintaining such a belief shall issue a termination notice to the other, identifying 

the facts as perceived, and both parties shall bargain in good faith to cure the material breach as stated in 

the termination notice.  If such a cure can be effected prior to the date by which termination otherwise 

would be effective, both parties shall commit their understanding to writing, and termination shall not 

become effective.  If in curing an actual or alleged breach either party shall waive any rights otherwise 

inuring to him/her by virtue of this Agreement, such waiver shall not be construed to in any way affect 

future application of the provision involved or any other provision. 

B. This Agreement may, however, be terminated by either party upon at least seven (7) days 

written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the 

terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party and provided the terminating party has complied 

fully with sub-paragraph A above.  Such termination shall not be effective if that substantial failure has 

been remedied before expiration of the period specified in the written notice. The only exceptions to this 

seven-day written notice condition are Drake's rights to terminate this Agreement as set forth in this 

Agreement or to terminate this Agreement immediately if conditions making it more difficult than 

anticipated to secure samples at the specified locations, and/or if conditions are encountered which were 

not made known prior to Drake's arrival at the project site. 

C. Drake may terminate this Agreement if the Client suspends Drake's services for more than 

sixty (60) consecutive days through no fault of Drake.  In addition, Drake reserves the right to terminate 

this Agreement and/or withhold the production of documents (including but not limited to letters, 

memorandum and reports) to Client if payment of any Drake invoice is not received within 60 days of 

the date of the invoice. 

D. If this Agreement is terminated, Drake shall be paid for services completed prior to the 

termination date set forth in the notice plus termination expenses.   Termination expenses shall include 

personnel and equipment rescheduling and re-assignment adjustments and all other related costs incurred 

directly attributable to termination. 

XIX. THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

A. The services performed by Drake are for the benefit of Client and no other party.  There are no 

third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement. 

XX. ASSIGNMENT 

A. Neither Client nor Drake may assign, delegate or transfer any of their duties, responsibilities or 

interests in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. 

XXI. SEVERABILITY 

A. In the event that any provision contained in this Agreement is deemed invalid, void or 

unenforceable, the other provisions shall remain binding upon the parties and in full force and effect. 



12 

XXII. ATTORNEYS FEES AND EXPENSES 

A. In the event Client's bill is referred to an attorney or agent for collection, Client agrees to pay 

reasonable attorney's or agent's fees that Drake incurs as a result of such collection. 

XXIII. CHOICE OF LAW 

A. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

XXIV. VENUE 

A. In the event any legal action or proceeding is brought based upon the terms of this agreement, 

venue of the action or proceeding shall be in the County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin. 

XXV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

A. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between Client and Drake and supersedes all 

prior or contemporaneous oral or written representations or Agreements.  This Agreement shall not be 

modified except by written document signed by both parties. 

AS REQUIRED BY WISCONSIN LIEN LAW, DRAKE CONSULTING GROUP, LLC HEREBY 

NOTIFIES OWNER THAT PERSONS OR COMPANIES FURNISHING LABOR OR MATERIALS 

ON OWNER'S LAND MAY HAVE LIEN RIGHTS ON OWNER'S LAND AND BUILDINGS IF NOT 

PAID.  THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN RIGHTS IN ADDITION TO THE UNDERSIGNED, DRAKE 

CONSULTING GROUP, LLC ARE THOSE WHO CONTRACT DIRECTLY WITH THE OWNER 

OR THOSE WHO GIVE THE OWNER NOTICE WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER THEY FIRST 

FURNISH LABOR OR MATERIALS.  ACCORDINGLY, OWNER WILL PROBABLY RECEIVE 

NOTICES FROM THOSE WHO FURNISH LABOR OR MATERIALS, AND SHOULD GIVE A 

COPY OF EACH NOTICE RECEIVED TO THE MORTGAGE LENDER, IF ANY.  DRAKE 

CONSULTING GROUP, LLC AGREES TO COOPERATE WITH THE OWNER AND THE 

OWNER'S LENDER, IF ANY, TO SEE THAT ALL POTENTIAL LIEN CLAIMANTS ARE DULY 

PAID. 

 

The parties hereby enter and agree to the terms of said contract and become bound to same this day of August____ ,2012. 

DRAKE Consulting Group, LLC 

By:   By:   

 D.J. Burns       

 Project Director    Title:  Village President & Village Clerk   

  

Date:        8/3/2012  Company/Organization: Village of Pleasant Prairie 

 

Proposal No:      J12005  Date:   

Rev. 08/3/12 



����	

��	�����																	��������	���������		�����																���	������ ��� �																	!�"	������ �����																###$%���&���$��'	

�()*+,�	�-						 			.-/�0�((�	�-							 /�(	1/0!!�	-/

���� 	
� 	�	

������� ���������

������� �� �������� �������

��� ��
��

 !����

�������� �������� "# ���$

��� %�&���� ���  ''��!��

������ (�'���)��� %���!�����

��	
 ���	���

�� ���� ��� ���� ��� ����	�� �� ���	�	� �
	�
�� 	�! ����� "��� 
� ��� "�#$	��� %�& 
���'�!

	�! �$���! (�! $
�$��	�� ��
 )�! �	*	��� +�&�� �&��  � (� 	,	
!�! (	��! ��  �� �
����	� )�!

���#�� � !	 �! ���� �-� ����. /!!��!�# +� )�! ���#�� � !	 �! ���� ��� ���� �����! (�

�	
 ��
� �� ������ /
�� � � 	�! ����� "��� 
� ��� "�#$	��� %�& �� ����!	�� ���� �0� ����

,� �#$�� �!  �� ��$� 
�'��,� 	�! $
�$��	� �'	��	 ���� ��
 )�! �	*	��� �&�� �&��&

1����,��� ��
 ��$� 
�'��,� 2 $
�$��	� �'	��	 ���� ,� 	
� 
��##��!��� �� 
	 	,	
!� ��


 �� �����,��� (�! $	*	����

�& )�! �	*	�� +�&�� 3��� �'� ��#��� ���

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� ����� "��� 
� ���&

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 4�5����

�& )�! �	*	�� +�&�� �	���
�

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� �	�� "��� 
� ���

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 4���-��

6& )�! �	*	�� +�&�6 "	
$�� 
�

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� ����� "��� 
� ���

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 407����

0& )�! �	*	�� +�&�0 8�$��# )�	
!

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� �	'�� ��'���$#�� 

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 4�6�076

5& )�! �	*	�� +�&�5 /��� �	� "�������

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� /����
� /��� ��

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 49�77�

7& )�! �	*	�� +�&�7 1���
���

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� 1�
�'�
 1���
� %�

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 46��6��

-& )�! �	*	�� +�&�- �	�� ���

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� :	��;��� %�

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 4<-9<

9& )�! �	*	�� +�&�9 1�
� �
� � ���

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� ��*�
 1�
� 3�� �#�

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 45�7��

<& )�! �	*	�� +�&�< ���#(���

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� =�� ���#(���

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 4-��-�



����	

��	�����																	��������	���������		�����																���	������ ��� �																	!�"	������ �����																###$%���&���$��'	

�()*+,�	�-						 			.-/�0�((�	�-							 /�(	1/0!!�	-/

��& )�! �	*	�� +�&�� >�/"

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� �	
 �� �� �
��� "�#$	��

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 46��75�

��& )�! �	*	�� +�&�� ?�� 
�	�

���##��!�! "�� 
	 �
 /,	
!� :%=;3�
�� ?�� 
�

"�� 
	 /,	
! �	���� 400�770

���	�� 
���
  �  �� 	  	��! )�! �	(��	 ��� �$
�	!���� � ��
 	 !� 	���! � �#�@	 ��� �� �	� (�!

$
�$��	� 
���'�!& ��� ��� �	'� 
�'��,�!  ��� ��  �
 	�! )�! �	(��	 ����� $��	�� ���� 	�! !	 �

�	� )�! �	(��	 ��� 	  �� (�  �# ��!�	 ��� ���
 	$$
�'	� ��  �� 
��##��!�! �� 
	 �
�&

%� 	!!� ���  � )�! �	(��	 ���� ������! ,� ���  ��� ��  �
� ,� �	'� 	��� $
�$	
�! 	 "�� 3�##	
�

 � �� 	(����  �� 8�� ��
  �� �'�
	�� $
�A� ����!��� 	�� �� ������ #���� 	�! ��� 
� ���

#	�	��#�� ����& ��� 3�##	
� 	��� ����!�� �� ��
 	� �
�	 �� ��
 ���
 
�'��, 	�! 	$$
�'	�&

���	�� 
�'��,  �� "�� 3�##	
� 	�! ���� 	�! !	 � (���, ��!�	 ��� ���
 	$$
�'	� ��  �� ���	�

8�� 	�! 	�� 	�$ �! 	� �
�	 ��& ��� ,� �	'� 
���'�! ���
 	$$
�'	�� ,� ,��� $
�$	
�  ��

��
#	� /%/ ���#��  � (� �B�� �! (�  �� ����	�� �� ���	�	� �
	�
�� 	�! ����� "��� 
� ���

"�#$	��� %�&

%�  ��
� 	
� 	�� ������ �
 ���
�� ,� �  �� )�! �	(��	 ���� �
 "�� 3�##	
�� $��	�� �� 	 ��

	� ���� 	� $����(�� ��  ��� 	� (� 	!!
����! 	�! 
����'�! �� 	  �#��� �	�����& � ��
,���� $��	��

���� 	�! !	 �  ��� ��  �
 ��  �� �$	� $
�'�!�! ��!�	 ��� ���
 	$$
�'	� ��  �� ��(#�  �! � �#�&

3���
����

�%=?C "�D3��E"�%�D "���/DC� %D"&

��� 8��(�
 =??� /�

�
�A� ?������


����	�� �� ���	�	� �
	�
�� /$$
�'	��

F"��*G

/�$ /� �
�	 � +� HHHH

/�$ /� �
�	 � +� HHHH

/�$ /� �
�	 � +6 HHHH

/�$ /� �
�	 � +0 HHHH

HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH

���	�� ��������� ����	�� /!#���� 
	 �
 �	 ��



����	

��	�����																	��������	���������		�����																���	������ ��� �																	!�"	������ �����																###$%���&���$��'	

�()*+,�	�-						 			.-/�0�((�	�-							 /�(	1/0!!�	-/

?��&�

)�! �	(��	 ��� 3�##	
�

)�+�&�� )�+�&�� )�! �	(��	 ����

"�$�� �	'� ����� ����� "��� 
� ��� "�#$	��� %�&

��# ��
	� ����� "��� 
� ��� "�#$	��� %�&

��# � "������ �	
 ��
� �� ������ /
�� � �



CSI # DESCRIPTION BUDGET 09/29/11 COST/SF GMP COST/SF CONTRACTOR Alt 1: Pain Alt 2: Carp Alt 3: Ceil Alt 4: Bond

01000 General Conditions 58,686$                       9.71$             58,686$                    9.71$         Riley Construction N/A N/A N/A N/A

02200 Selective Demolition 27,491$                       4.55$             25,000$                    4.14$         Riley Construction N/A 430 475 N/A

03300 Cast In Place Concrete 600$                            0.10$             By Owner By Owner N/A N/A N/A N/A

04200 Masonry 32,334$                       5.35$             10,700$                    1.77$         Rasch Construction N/A N/A N/A -105

06000 Carpentry 47,512$                       7.86$             46,000$                    7.61$         Riley Construction N/A N/A N/A N/A

09100 Drywall 19,782$                       3.27$             23,463$                    3.88$         Daveco N/A N/A N/A -1,000

09500 Acoustical Ceilings 4,561$                         0.75$             8,660$                      1.43$         Algiers Acoustics N/A N/A 1,320 -250

09658 Resilient Tile Flooring 16,073$                       2.66$             31,320$                    5.18$         Forever Floors N/A 2,860 N/A 0

09900 Painting 12,490$                       2.07$             9,789$                      1.62$         Wall Tech 3,198 N/A N/A -150

15300 Fire Protection 4,000$                         0.66$             5,600$                      0.93$         Decker Fire Systems N/A N/A N/A -140

15400 Plumbing 5,269$                         0.87$             7,070$                      1.17$         Lee Plumbing N/A N/A N/A 0

15500 HVAC 34,300$                       5.68$             30,650$                    5.07$         Martin Peterson N/A N/A 1,800 -205

Cost Summary

Village of Pleasant Prairie
VOPP - Police Department Renovation

Pleasant Prairie, WI

Construction Documents Phase
July 24, 2012

15500 HVAC 34,300$                       5.68$             30,650$                    5.07$         Martin Peterson N/A N/A 1,800 -205

16100 Electrical 25,000$                       4.14$             44,664$                    7.39$         Wil Surge Electric N/A N/A 3,723 -660

Subtotal 288,098$                     47.67$           301,602$                  49.90$       3,198$            3,290$            7,318$            (2,510)$          

Contingency 34,572$                       5.72$             36,192$                    5.99$         384$               395$               878$               (301)$             

Subtotal 322,670$                     53.39$           337,794$                  55.89$       3,582$            3,685$            8,196$            (2,811)$          

Builders Risk Insurance 450$                            0.07$             471$                         0.08$         

General Liability Insurance 2,423$                         0.40$             2,537$                      0.42$         27$                 28$                 61$                 (21)$               

Subtotal 325,544$                     53.86$           340,802$                  56.39$       3,609$            3,712$            8,258$            (2,832)$          
Overhead & Profit 16,277$                       2.69$             17,040$                    2.82$         180$               186$               413$               (142)$             

A/E Fee By Owner By Owner
Subtotal 341,821$                     56.56$           357,842$                  59.21$       3,789$            3,898$            8,671$            (2,974)$          

Subguard 1,250$                         
Performance Bond -$                             -$               3,080$                      0.51$         36$                 37$                 82$                 (28)$               

TOTAL 343,071$                     56.76$           360,922$                  59.72$       3,825$            3,935$            8,752$            (3,002)$          

Project Square Footage 6,044 6,044



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

%
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! 	�����. 
��0��.

 �������� C

 �������� C	 
��.

3E)"�D��/"���

3������!� (�)� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/�

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E ��

.

 �������� C� 
0�. $��.

56��� (����� �������� 7. 7.

���)��� A ���� 4��, 7. 
�	.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

%���� +�����������

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

%
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! ��0��. -�	��. 	-��0�.

 �������� C

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

������� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/�	

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E ��

 �������� C�

56��� (����� �������� �$�. �-�. 7.

���)��� A ���� 4��, ��. 7. 	0�.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F F F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F 1 F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F F 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

%���� +�����������

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

%
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3
�
�
�
�
�
�

3
�
�
�
�
)
�

?
"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A

3
�
�
�
@

%
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! 
-����. ����
�. �-����.

 �������� C

 �������� C	

 �������� C�

3E)"�D��/"���

+��'����� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/��

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E	 ��

56��� (����� �������� 	
�
	. 	
�
��. 	$�		.

���)��� A ���� 4��, 7. --�. �-�.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F 1 F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F 1 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

%���� +�����������

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E	 ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

(
�
!
�
�
�

(
�
!
�
�
�
'
)
�
�
�

� 5
�
�
)
'
�
�

+
�
)
'
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
7
8
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
#
�
�

%
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! 	��
-�. 	��0��. 	$�	��. 	��$-�. ��-��.

 �������� C $��.

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

(��6��� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/�


���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  �� 	 02	
2	�	 2 -E	 ��

 �������� C�

56��� (����� �������� 
����. 
����. ��$��. 0����. /

���)��� A ���� 4��, ����. 	��. 
	�. ��.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F 1 F 1 F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F F F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F F 1 F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ 1 1 1 1 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1 1 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

(�!��� (�!���')����

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  �� 	 02	
2	�	 2 -E	 ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

 
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3
�
�
!
�
�
�
(
�
�
6
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! $�--�. ��-0	. 	�0��.

 �������� C

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

 ��������� +������� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/��

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��

 �������� C� ��	�. ��$. �-$�.

56��� (����� �������� 7. 
�0��. -��0�.

���)��� A ���� 4��, 	��. 0�. �	.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F 1 F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F 1 1

1����2+�))���� F 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

 ������  ��������

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

9
�
�
�
!
�
�
9
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! ���	�.

 �������� C

 �������� C	 	�$-�.

3E)"�D��/"���

9������� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/�-

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��

�.

 �������� C�

56��� (����� �������� ���-�.

���)��� A ���� 4��, #����,�, �� .�

 ''!D, ?F21@ F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F

1����2+�))���� 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

9���!�� 9�����

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

"
�
�
�
8
�
�
�
#
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! ��0$�. 	����.

 �������� C ���$. 	�-�	.

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

�������� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/�0

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��

 �������� C�

56��� (����� �������� ���. 7.

���)��� A ���� 4��, ��. ���.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

"���78��� #��

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

(
�
�
:
�
�
9
�
�
�

 
�
�
�
)
�
�
�
�
9
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

(
�
�
�
�
�
4
�
�
�
,

H
�
�
�
�
,
3
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! ��-��. ��00. 0�
��. 0�
	-.

 �������� C

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

9��� ���������� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/�$

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E
 ��

 �������� C� 7. -$�. -��.

56��� (����� �������� 7. 7. 7. 7.

���)��� A ���� 4��, 
�. -�. �. ��.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F 1 1 F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F 1 F 1

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F F F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F 1 1 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

(��:�� 9��� A 3�����

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E
 ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

I
�
�
�
3
�
�
!
�
�
�
�

<
�
�
�
�
�
)
;
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! -�-0�. 0��0�. 
�-��.

 �������� C

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

���);��� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/��

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E
 ��

 �������� C�

56��� (����� �������� 7. 7. 	����.

���)��� A ���� 4��, 7. 7. ��.

 ''!D, ?F21@ 1 F F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ 1 #����,�, �� .� F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ 1 F 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1 1

1�� ���&�������,/

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

<�� ���);���

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E
 ��

mailto:�A�4��,?F21@1#����,�,��.�F


�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

<
�
�
=
�
�
�
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
�
�
'

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! ���-��. ���-$�. 
��-��.

 �������� C

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

=� + 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/�

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E
 ��

 �������� C� �$��. ����. ���.

56��� (����� �������� 
�$��. 7. 
����.

���)��� A ���� 4��, 	��. 00$. ���.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F F 1

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F F

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F 1 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

������ ��������

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E
 ��



�
�A� �

=�	 ����

�,��
�

/
�� � �

)�! �	*	�� +� )%�I8�� �	����

���
�$ ���� )�! �$����� �	 ��

/  ��!����

)�! ��� �	 ��

)�! ��� ��#��

"
#
<
7
3
�
�
�
�

>
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

>
+
#

4
�
�
:
�
�

>
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
2
�
�
�
'
�

�
>
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

*
�
�
�
�
<
�
:
�
�

>
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

<
�
�
>
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
�
)
�
�

*
�
�
�
�
�

3"��? �?3"�%��%�D

)	�� )�! 

�--
. ������. �
��
�. �-�0��. �0����. -	�0$�. 0
���$.

 �������� C

 �������� C	

3E)"�D��/"���

>��������� 02	2	�	

(�!� %���� ?%++#@� ��� *��;��� ?%++#@� 8�)

���� 	� 	�	 5D+������ ?�#(@

	E�� ��

�5�� ������ 3������

������� �� �������� �������� "#

������� �� �������� �������

�������� #� (�����

/

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��

 �������� C� ��0	�. �����. ��
�. ���	�. 
����. ��$0�. 
��-$.

56��� (����� �������� 	��. 	�
��. ��	. 
�
$�. �����. ��-�. �����.

���)��� A ���� 4��, --�. $��. �
�. ��-�. 7. �
�. �$�.

 ''!D, ?F21@ F F F F F 1 F

 ,,��,� ?C� F21@ F F F F F F 1

�A� 4��, ?F21@ F F F F 1 F F

3���� 8�G ?F21@ F F F F F F F

���!���/ "��� %�&/ ?F21@ F F F F F F F

����74�, #����!��6 ?F21@ F 1 1 1 1 1 1

1����2+�))���� 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

���##��!�! /,	
!�

�,��
 /$$
�'	�� �	 ��

"#<73���� >�������

���'���, 4�E %���� +����������� +�)'���� #��/ ����  ��  02	
2	�	 2 -E� ��



 

 

  1 

Staff Report 

To:  Pleasant Prairie Village Board Members,  
CC:  Mike Pollocoff, Village Administrator  

Carol Willke, Director of Recreation 
Lyn Boehm, Programs Director 

Kathy Goessl, VPP Finance Director 

From:  Chris Finkel, Business Director 
 

Date:  8/2/2012 
Re:   Chapter 242: Parks and Recreation Fees Ordinance Modifications 

This recommendation is for the modification to Chapter 242 of the 
Municipal Code as it pertains to fee structures for the Recreation 
Department.  
 

 

 

§ 242-9. LakeView RecPlex.  
 
 
C.  Program Rates 

The amendment to this section of the ordinance is the addition of new Programs and 

changes of member and non-member session fees for recreation programs.  See attached. 

 

D. Program Services 

The amendment to this section of the ordinance is the addition new programs and changes 

of member and non-member fees for the Services. See attached. 

 

 

 

F.  Birthday Party & Field Trip Rates. 

The amendment to this section of the ordinance is the addition new options and changes of 

member and non-member fees for the Birthday Party & Field Trips. See attached. 

    
These rates will be recommended to the Village Board on the 6th 

of August,  2012.  Thank you for your consideration. 

    

 



 

1 
 

ORDINANCE 12-24 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 242 

OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

RELATING TO RECPLEX FEES 

 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ESTABLISHED by the Village Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that Chapter 242 is 

amended as follows: 

§ 242-9. LakeView RecPlex.  

C.   Program Rates – See 242 Attachment fee schedule at the end 

of this chapter. 

D.  Program Services – 

(2) Program Services fees:   See 242 Attachment fee 

schedule at the end of this chapter. 

F.   Birthday Party & Field Trip Rates – See 242 Attachment fee 

schedule at the end of this chapter. 

Passed and adopted this 6th day of August, 2012. 

   

      ____________________________________ 

      John P. Steinbrink, President 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________ 

Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk 

Posted:_____________ 



RecPlex

Birthday Package / Fieldtrips 2012

Category Program
 Member 

Fees 

 Non-Member 

Fees 

 Member 

Fees 

 Non-Member 

Fees 

 change 

Member Fees 

 change Non-

Member Fees 

 Member Vs 

Non-Member 

Includes: 5 latex balloons & 1 mylar balloonpackage 15$           15$           10$           10$           5               5               1.00          

  Program Fees 2012   Program Fees 2011   Fee Changes



RecPlex

Program Fees 2012
Recommend: 8-6-12

Category Program Charge Per  Member 
 Non-

Member 

 Early 

Bird (1) 
 Member 

 Non-

Member 

 Early 

Bird (1) 

Fitness: Group Group Fitness:  Core: 6 week session Session 22       38     (5)      21       35     (5)      

Fitness: Group Group Fitness:  Core: 5 week session Session 19       32     (5)      18       30     (5)      

Fitness: Group Group Fitness: Core Fitness Mix: Passport: Monthly  Monthly 40       NA NA 40       NA NA

Fitness: Group Group Fitness:  Specialty: 6 week session  Session 39       63     (5)      38       60     (5)      

Fitness: Group Group Fitness:  Specialty: 5 week session Session 33       53     (5)      30       50     (5)      

Fitness: Group Group Fitness: Total Fitness Mix: Passport: Monthly  Monthly 60       NA NA 60       NA NA

Martial ATA: Tiny Tigers, Karate Kids & Adult ATA:  6 week session Session 79       125   (5)      78       123   (5)      

Martial ATA: Tiny Tigers, Karate Kids, & Adult ATA:  5 week session Session 66       105   (5)      65       103   (5)      

Martial Martial Arts: 6 week session Session 43       60     (5)      40       59     (5)      

Martial Martial Arts: 5 week session Session 36       50     (5)      33       49     (5)      

Martial Martial Arts: 6 week session: 90 minute Session 50       70     (5)      46       67     (5)      

Martial Martial Arts: 5 week session: 90 minute Session 42       59     (5)      38       56     (5)      

Sports: Youth Basketball: Youth Individual 90       110   (5)      75       90     (5)      

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: Registration:  per school year School year 50       50     30       30     

YTH: SACC School Age Program: Transportation fee:  per school year School year 100     100   

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: Late Fee Daily 10       15     10       10     

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: Before School Care: weekly: AM Weekly 33       44     30       37     

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: After School Care: weekly: PM Weekly 65       82     59       72     

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: Before School Care: daily: AM Daily 8         12     7         9       

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: After School Care: Daily: PM Daily 15       23     13       19     

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: After School Care: Half Day Daily 25       30     17       21     

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: Early Release Daily 25       30     15       19     

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program:Before and After School Care:  Trailblazers weekly Weekly 70       90     59       72     

TR & YTH: SACC School Age Program: Before & After School Care:Trailblazers daily Daily 25       30     7         9       

YTH: Pro Youth & Family Program: level 1: 8 week session Session 42       67     (5)      41       66     (5)      

YTH: Pro Youth & Family Program: level 1: 7 week session Session 37       59     (5)      36       58     (5)      

YTH: Pro Youth & Family Program: level 1: 6 week session Session 32       51     (5)      31       50     (5)      

YTH: Pro Youth & Family Program: level 1: 5 week session Session 27       43     (5)      26       42     (5)      

  Program Fees 2012   Program Fees 2011



RecPlex

Program Services 2012

Category Program Charge Per  Member  Non-Member  Member  Non-Member 

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 1: 3 hour Hour 55             60               

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 1: 5 6 hour Hour 52             57             50             55             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 1: 10 12 hour Hour 49             54             45             50             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 1: 20 hour Hour 46             51             45             50             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 2: 3 hour Hour 63             68               

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 2: 5 6 hour Hour 59             64             58             63             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 2: 10 12 hour Hour 56             61             53             58             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 2: 20 hour Hour 53             58             45             50             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 3: 1 hour Hour 71             76             71             76             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 3: 3 hour Hour 71             76               

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 3: 5 6 hour Hour 67             72             66             71             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 3: 10 12 hour Hour 64             69             61             66             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Personal Training: Level 3: 20 hour Hour 61             66             45             50             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 1: 3 1 hour Hour 28             32             27             32             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 1: 5 6 hour Hour 26             30             25             30             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 1: 10 12 hour Hour 25             28             23             28             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 2: 3 1 hour Hour 32             37             30             35             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 2: 5 6 hour Hour 30             35             28             33             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 2: 10 12 hour Hour 28             33             37             42             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 3: 3 1 hour Hour 37             42             33             38             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 3: 5 6 hour Hour 35             40             66             71             

Fitness: PT/Sports Performance Small Grp Training: Level 3: 10 12 hour Hour 33             38             61             66             

Service Fees 2012 Service Fees 2011



                           

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  

 

Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Office of the Village Administrator 
 
 
To:  Village Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Michael R. Pollocoff 
   Village Administrator 
 
Date:  August 3, 2012  
 
Re: RecPlex Concession Lease Agreement 
 

 
On May 4, 2012 the Village received sealed proposals for leasing of concession space 
within the RecPlex and Prairie Springs Park. Two responses were received: first, by RJ 
Lewer, LLC of Kenosha, Wisconsin; second, by Fuel By Design of Kenosha, Wisconsin.  
 
Currently, RJ Lewer leases space at the concession stand located near the ice arena at 
RecPlex and has performed well in the last year. 
 
RJ Lewer, LLC proposes a three (3) year contract with two (2) two (2) year renewals at 
a base rate or $1,250.00 per month with a deescalating percent of profit on gross sales 
which is listed below: 

 
 

Gross Sales Commission 
Schedule (sales/month) 

Percentage 
Paid 

$0 -         $14,999 $1,200 

$15,000 - $34,000 8.00% 

$35,000 - $44,999 7.00% 

$45,000 - $49,999 6.50% 

$50,000 - $54,999 6.00% 

$55,000 - $64,999 5.50% 

$65,000 - $69,000 5.25% 

$70,000 + 5.00% 

 
 

 



 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  

Page 2 
August 3, 2012 
RecPlex Concession Lease Agreement 

 
 
The proposal submitted by Fuel By Design was non responsive to the Request For 
Proposal (RFP). The proposed space by Fuel By Design was not requested in the RFP 
and no proposed lease amount was submitted in the RFP. 
 
Recommendation:  Village Administrator to be authorized to execute a Concession 
Lease Agreement with RJ Lewer, LLC for the amounts listed above. 
 
 
 

***** 











































































 

 

  1 

Staff Report 

To:  Pleasant Prairie Village Board Members 
CC:  Mike Pollocoff, Village Administrator  

Carol Willke, Director of Recreation 
Kathy Goessl, VPP Finance Director 

From:  Chris Finkel, Business Director 

 
Date:  8/2/2012 

Re:   Chapter 242: Parks and Recreation Permit Request 

This memo concerns Chapter 242 of the Municipal Code as it pertains to 
Park Permits.  
 

 

 

§ 242-2. Permits.  

All permits issued pursuant to this section shall be obtained before the proposed activity.  

   A. The following actions are permitted with a written permit from the Village Board:  

Piccadilly Circus is requesting a park permit August 27-Sept 2, 2012 for picnic Site #1 in Prairie 

Springs Park located at the South East corner of HWY. 165 and Terwall Terrace. 

(1) Any person, group or organization may hold or take part in any musical, theatrical or other 

entertainment, or any parade, procession, public meeting or gathering of any kind, or make any 

political or religious address, oration or demonstration of any kind, or use any loudspeaker or 

amplifying equipment in any park only with written permission.  

   F. Compliance with rules and regulations. A permittee shall be bound by all of the park rules and 

regulations and all applicable ordinances fully as though the same were inserted in such permit, 

except to the extent that the permit otherwise specifies.  See attached documentation. 

The permit requestor has complied with ordinance and permit regulations, has responded to all Village 

Department requests and is a family friendly event that would benefit the local community and the 

Village of Pleasant Prairie, the staff is recommending approval of the permit for Piccadilly Circus. 

 

    

 

  

                                   Approval of permit will be recommended to the Village Board on                

                                  the 6th  of August,  2012.  Thank you for your consideration. 

   

 

http://www.ecode360.com/9353580#9353586
http://www.ecode360.com/9353580#9353588
http://www.ecode360.com/9353580#9353625













































	Agenda - August 6 2012
	Minutes - July 16 2012
	7A. Resolution #12-25 - Miss Pleasant Prairie
	7B. Resolution #12-23 Initiate 2035 Comp Plan Amendment
	Res #12-23 Exhibit 1

	7C. Resolution #12-24 Initiate Discontinuance of a portion of 120th Avenue
	Res #12-24 Exhibit A

	7D. Memo - Single Stream Recycling Services
	Current Veolia Single Stream Recycling 8-09 to 8-12
	Extended Veolia Single Stream Recycling Agreement

	7E.  Memo - Solid Waste Landfill Services
	Veolia Solid Waste Landfill Contract 2012-2015

	7F. Memo - Chapter 355 well permit amenment
	Ordinance #12-22 Amend 355 well permits
	Current Ch. 355-16

	7G. Ordinance #12-23 Ch 285 amend sewer definitions
	7H. Memo - BP Environmental Consultant
	BP Environmental Agreement

	7I. Police Dept Remodel Project Contract
	7J. Memo - Chapter 242 RecPlex fee amendment
	Birthday Fees Aug 2012
	Program Fee changes Aug 2012
	Program Service Changes Aug 2012

	7K. RecPlex Concession Services Lease Agreement
	RecPlex Concession Lease Agreement

	7L. Memo - Piccadilly Circus Rental
	Piccadilly Circus Attachments and permit




